
 

 

 

19 July 2021 

At the conclusion of the Environment Committee 

 

Cultural and Community Committee 
 



Cultural and Community Committee 19 July 2021 

  

Agenda 
  

 

 

1.   Disclosures of Interest 

Healthy Communities Sub-Committee 

2.   Revised Project Scope - Pyrmont Community Centre Upgrade 

 



 

 

 
 

Disclaimer, Terms and Guidelines for 
Speakers at Council Committees 
As part of our democratic process, the City invites members of the community to speak directly to Councillors during 
Committee meetings about items on the agenda. 

Webcast  

In accordance with the City of Sydney Code of Meeting Practice, Committee meetings are recorded and webcast 
live on the City of Sydney website at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au.  

Members of the public attending a council or committee meeting may have their image, voice and personal 
information (including name and address) recorded, publicly broadcast and archived for up to 12 months.  

Consent  

By attending a council or committee meeting, members of the public consent to this use of their image, voice and 
personal information.  

Disclaimer 

Statements made by individuals at a council or committee meeting, and which may be contained in a live stream 
or recording of the meeting are those of the individuals making them, and not of the City. To be clear, unless set 
out in a resolution of council, the City does not endorse or support such statements. 

The City does not accept any liability for statements made or actions taken by individuals during a Council or 
Committee meeting that may be contrary to law, including discriminatory, defamatory or offensive comments. Such 
statements or actions are not protected by privilege and may be the subject of legal proceedings and potential 
liability, for which the City takes no responsibility. 

Guidelines  

To enable the Committee to hear a wide range of views and concerns within the limited time available, we 
encourage people interested in speaking at Committee to: 

1. Register to speak by calling Secretariat on 9265 9702 or emailing secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au 
before 10.00am on the day of the meeting. 

2. Check the recommendation in the Committee report before speaking, as it may address your concerns so 
that you just need to indicate your support for the recommendation. 

3. Note that there is a three minute time limit for each speaker (with a warning bell at two minutes) and 
prepare your presentation to cover your major points within that time. 

4. Avoid repeating what previous speakers have said and focus on issues and information that the 
Committee may not already know. 

5. If there is a large number of people interested in the same item as you, try to nominate three 
representatives to speak on your behalf and to indicate how many people they are representing. 

Committee meetings can continue until very late, particularly when there is a long agenda and a large number of 
speakers. This impacts on speakers who have to wait until very late, as well as City staff and Councillors who are 
required to remain focused and alert until very late. At the start of each Committee meeting, the Committee Chair 
may reorder agenda items so that those items with speakers can be dealt with first. 

Committee reports are available at www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au 

http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/
mailto:secretariat@cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au
http://www.cityofsydney.nsw.gov.au/


Cultural and Community Committee 19 July 2021 
 

Disclosures of Interest 

Pursuant to the provisions of the City of Sydney Code of Meeting Practice and the City of 
Sydney Code of Conduct, Councillors are required to disclose pecuniary interests in any 
matter on the agenda for this meeting. 

Councillors are also required to disclose any non-pecuniary interests in any matter on the 
agenda for this meeting. 

This will include receipt of reportable political donations over the previous four years. 

In both cases, the nature of the interest must be disclosed. 

1

Item 1.



Healthy Communities Sub-Committee 19 July 2021 
 

Revised Project Scope - Pyrmont Community Centre Upgrade 

File No: X038734 

Summary 

On 29 June 2020, Council resolved to endorse the project scope and budget for the  
Pyrmont Community Centre Upgrade.  

In November 2020, architects were engaged, by competitive tender, to undertake the design 
and documentation for the Pyrmont Community Centre Upgrade. 

This report details the revised recommended project scope for the Pyrmont Community 
Centre Upgrade in response to community communication and recommendations by the 
Design Advisory Panel. This recommended scope will form the basis of a Development 
Application, documentation and tender for construction works.  

This report also seeks an exemption from tender to increase the contract contingency to the 
existing Head Design Consultant contract to cover the extended design work associated with 
the additional project scope. 

  

1

Item 2.



Healthy Communities Sub-Committee 19 July 2021 
 

 

Recommendation 

It is resolved that: 

(A) Council endorse the revised project scope for the Pyrmont Community Centre 
Upgrade as described in the subject report for the purpose of proceeding with design 
development and lodgement of the Development Application, documentation and 
tender for construction works; 

(B) Council note the financial implications detailed in Confidential Attachment C to the 
subject report; 

(C) Council approve that the additional funds required for this project are sourced from the 
future year provisions for Community and Recreational Facilities included in the City's 
current approved Long Term Financial Plan, as set out in the City's Resourcing 
Strategy (2021); 

(D) Council approve an exemption from tender for additional contingency for the Head 
Design Consultant works by reason of extenuating circumstances, noting that a 
satisfactory result for the City would not be achieved by inviting tenders at this time; 

(E) Council note the reasons that a satisfactory result would not be achieved for inviting 
tenders for this work are: 

(i) the expanded scope of works (from part to all of the Community Centre) is best 
carried out by the current head design consultant on the basis the consultant is 
already engaged, and work is well underway, thereby resulting in efficiency in 
program design and costs and transfer of existing project knowledge associated 
with the expanded scope of works; and 

(ii) the proposed services can be provided by a company already engaged by 
Council. Hence a natural advantage, such as efficiency in program, costs, and 
transfer of existing knowledge will be achieved by using the existing company; 

(F) Council approve the increased contract contingency to the existing Head Design 
Consultant contract to cover extended design work, as described in Confidential 
Attachment C to the subject report; and 

(G) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to negotiate, execute and 
administer variations to the Head Design Consultant Contract relating to Pyrmont 
Community Centre Upgrade. 

Attachments 

Attachment A. Project Scope 

Attachment B. Resolution of Council - 29 June 2020 

Attachment C. Financial Implications (Confidential)  

2



Healthy Communities Sub-Committee 19 July 2021 
 

Background 

1. The Pyrmont Community Centre is located on the site of the former Pyrmont Public 
School at the corner of John and Mount Streets, Pyrmont. The former school building, 
grounds and fences are listed heritage items designed by William Kemp and built in 
1884. 

2. The site was purchased by the City in the early 1990s and refurbishment works were 
completed. These works included the construction of a two-storey extension to the rear 
(Mount Street) and the conservation and adaptive re-use of the former school buildings 
and grounds for childcare and community use.  

3. The ground floor of the former school building and grounds is an independently 
operated childcare service which is leased to SDN Children's Services. The Pyrmont 
Community Centre is housed in the Mount Street extension and upper levels of the 
former school buildings and grounds.  

4. The Pyrmont Community Centre was opened in 1993. With continuing residential 
growth on the Peninsula since the 1990's there is strong demand for the existing 
facilities and programs at the centre. Services at the Centre include a library link, 
children's program (Outside of School Hours Care - after school and vacation care - 
service operated by the City), a gym (separate weights and cardio rooms) and two 
spaces for hire including the ground floor Community Hall and a Community Room at 
level one.  

Need for Additional Community Facilities 

5. Community groups have advised the City they are running out of space at the centre 
and require another room to accommodate increasing community demand for 
services.  

6. On 9 September 2019, Council resolved that the Chief Executive Officer be requested 
to prepare a project scope, concept design and budget for the Pyrmont community's 
requests and report this to Council for consideration.   

7. Community groups requested: 

(a) an additional room to accommodate gym activity and equipment, which would 
free up the current gym room (50sqm) as a music room, and a smaller gym room 
(30sqm) as a meeting room; 

(b) an additional toilet upstairs; and 

(c) a cupboard system to store equipment that would allow the out of school hours 
care space to be used for other purposes when not being used for after school 
care. 

2020 Endorsed Project Scope  

8. On 29 June 2020, Council resolved to endorse the project scope and budget for the 
upgrade of Pyrmont Community Centre. 

3



Healthy Communities Sub-Committee 19 July 2021 
 

9. The endorsed scope included: 

(a) an access upgrade to provide accessible entry and lift access to all levels; 

(b) a gym upgrade; 

(c) new community rooms to be provided by converting the existing gym cardio 
room to a community room and converting existing Outside of School Hours 
Care Homework Space to 'shared' Community Room; and 

(d) an upgrade to the existing level one public toilets. 

Design Development and Proposed Scope 

10. In November 2020, Welsh and Major Architects (WMA) were engaged, by competitive 
tender, to undertake the design and documentation for the Pyrmont Community Centre 
Upgrade. 

11. Additional opportunities have been identified following a review of the existing building 
condition, required compliance upgrades, and communication from community groups. 
The recommended scope items include: 

(a) new 60sqm dedicated community room;  

(b) new ground floor office and public toilets; 

(c) fire services upgrades (Fire Indicator Panel, Main Switch Board, sprinklers, 
sprinkler booster pump and tank); and 

(d) refurbishing all community rooms to provide a holistic upgrade of the community 
centre.   

12. The proposed concept was presented to the Design Advisory Panel on 22 April 2021. 
The following comments were noted in the minutes of the Design Advisory Panel 
meeting: 

The Panel noted that the current project budget constraints limit the scope of works. 
The budget does not allow for work to reduce the dominance of the unsympathetic 
building addition added in the 90’s. The current budget also doesn’t allow additional 
excavation to better rationalise floor levels. Given the building’s heritage significance, 
the Panel recommended that the budget be reviewed and expanded to allow for these 
additional works. 

13. In response to the comments received from the Design Advisory Panel: 

(a) Options for reducing the dominance of the remaining 90s building have been 
investigated and it is proposed that retention and modification of the structure is 
the most suitable option.  

(b) Options for increasing the area of excavation to better rationalise the ground 
floor have been investigated and incorporated into the developed design. 

4



Healthy Communities Sub-Committee 19 July 2021 
 

Recommended Project Scope  

14. It is recommended the additional scope, required compliance upgrades and Design 
Advisory Panel advice be undertaken as part of the upgrade works.  

15. The recommended scope includes:  

(a) Access Upgrade: 

(i) Installation of an internal lift to provide accessible entry;  

(ii) New Mount Street entry foyer (additional scope item); and 

(iii) New ground floor public toilets (additional scope item). 

(b) Gym Upgrade: 

(i) Upgrade of the current weights area to create a single open plan gym 
space for weights and cardio. 

(c) New Community Rooms: 

(i) Convert the existing gym cardio room to Community Room 2 - 30sqm; and 

(ii) A new 60sqm dedicated community room (additional scope item). 

(d) Level one public toilets: 

(i) Upgrade existing bathrooms to provide public access to toilets on level 
one.  

(e) Upgrade of Out of School Hours Care Facility:  

(i) Upgrade office/administration areas, kitchen, amenities and storage for an 
Out of School Hours care service (additional scope item); 

(ii) Refurbishment of main Out of School Hours hall (additional scope item); 
and 

(iii) Upgrade play equipment in courtyard (additional scope item). 

(f) Refurbishment of all other community centre areas:  

(i) Refurbishing the main community hall (additional scope item); 

(ii) Refurbishing the library link (additional scope item); and 

(iii) Refurbishing the level one community room (additional scope item). 

(g) Fire services upgrade: Fire Indicator Panel, Main Switch Board, sprinklers, 
sprinkler booster pump and tank (additional scope item). 

5



Healthy Communities Sub-Committee 19 July 2021 
 

Heritage Impact 

16. A Conservation Management Plan (CMP) for Pyrmont Community Centre has been 
prepared by Graham Brooks and Associates Heritage. The proposed works are 
consistent with the recommendations of the Conservation Management Plan.  

17. The developed design requires demolition and modification of some building elements. 
The Conservation Management Plan generally rates building elements proposed for 
demolition/modification as 'intrusive to little significance'. 

18. The proposed works have been reviewed internally with the City's Heritage Specialist. 
Further consultation will be undertaken as material selection and detailing of new 
works is developed. 

Additional Consultant Services 

19. After endorsement of the design by Council, the design for the Pyrmont Community 
Centre Upgrade will be documented for tender, and additional construction stage 
services will also be required to be delivered, which will require additional fees. 

20. It is recommended that Council increase the contract contingency to the existing Head 
Design Consultant contract for design, documentation, construction and post 
construction services, for the reasons outlined below: 

(a) the current approved contract contingency is insufficient; 

(b) a further amount is required to cover design, documentation, construction and 
post construction related services; and 

(c) an allowance is also required to cover unforeseen project issues and risks. 

21. A sub-total of the additional contract contingency is detailed in confidential   
Attachment C. 

22. In accordance with Section 55, Chapter 6, Part 3 of the Local Government Act 1993, 
an exemption from tender is requested on the basis of the following extenuating 
circumstances: 

(a) The expanded scope of works (from part to all of the Community Centre) is best 
carried out by the current head design consultant on the basis the consultant is 
already engaged, and work is well underway, thereby resulting in efficiency in 
program design and costs and transfer of existing project knowledge associated 
with the expanded scope of works. 

(b) The proposed services can be provided by a company already engaged by 
Council. Hence a natural advantage, such as efficiency in program, costs, and 
transfer of existing knowledge will be achieved by using the existing company. 

6



Healthy Communities Sub-Committee 19 July 2021 
 

Key Implications 

Strategic Alignment - Sustainable Sydney 2030 

23. Sustainable Sydney 2030 is a vision for the sustainable development of the City to 
2030 and beyond. It includes 10 strategic directions to guide the future of the City, as 
well as 10 targets against which to measure progress. This report is aligned with the 
following strategic directions and objectives: 

(a) Direction 6 - Vibrant Local Communities and Economies - The project will 
support increased community participation and provide improved access for the 
community in the Pyrmont area. 

Organisational Impact 

24. The centre will continue to be operated by the City of Sydney, under the Community 
Centre's operating model. This project does not include any proposal to increase 
staffing. 

Risks 

25. Not implementing this scope of works could result in failure to meet community 
expectations.  

Social / Cultural / Community 

26. The proposed upgrade of the Pyrmont Community Centre will support increased 
community participation and provide improved access for all members of the 
community.    

Environmental 

27. The upgrade works will be designed and constructed to operate to meet the targets in 
the City's Environmental Management Plan. 

Financial Implications 

28. There are insufficient funds allocated within the approved 2021/22 capital works 
budget and future year's forward estimates to deliver this project as described herein. 
Additional funds are sought from the allocation for Community and Recreational 
Facilities forward estimates as included in the City's current approved Long Term 
Financial Plan  

29. The current cost estimates and funding implications are presented in Confidential 
Attachment C. 

  

7



Healthy Communities Sub-Committee 19 July 2021 
 

Relevant Legislation 

30. Local Government Act 1993 - Section 10A provides that a Council may close to the 
public so much of its meeting as comprises the discussion of information that would, if 
disclosed, confer a commercial advantage on a person with whom the council is 
conducting (or proposes to conduct) business.  

31. Attachment C to the subject report contains confidential commercial information which, 
if disclosed, would confer a commercial advantage on a person with whom Council is 
conducting (or proposes to conduct) business. 

32. Discussion of the matter in an open meeting would, on balance, be contrary to the 
public interest because it would compromise Council's ability to negotiate fairly and 
commercially to achieve the best outcome for its ratepayers. 

Critical Dates / Time Frames 

33. Target dates for project delivery are: 

Scope Approval Mid 2021 

Lodge Development Application Late 2021 

Commence Construction Late 2022 

Options 

34. Option to only undertake the existing approved scope and any essential compliance 
upgrade works: This option is not recommended as additional works to the remainder 
of the building would be required in the next five years for compliance an asset 
renewal reasons, which would require a further disruption to the operations of the 
Community Centre. There would be additional project costs and disruption to the 
community.  

35. Option to terminate Welsh and Major Architect's contract and retender the project for 
the remaining design consultancy services: This option is not recommended as the 
consultant has in-depth project knowledge and experience which would be lost if the 
contract were terminated. If the project was retendered, the project program would 
extend by six to eight months, and there would be additional project overhead costs. 

  

8



Healthy Communities Sub-Committee 19 July 2021 
 

Public Consultation 

36. Following earlier public consultation, as set out in the previous report to Council, on 15 
April 2021, all Pyrmont residents were sent a project update which also advised of the 
opportunity to provide feedback as part of the Development Application notification 
process.   

37. Detailed refurbishment plans will be included as part of the Development Application 
notification and statutory consultation will be undertaken as part of this process.   

AMIT CHANAN 

Director City Projects and Property 

Anna Field, Specialist Design Manager 

9



Attachment A 

Project Scope 

 
 

 
 

10



Scope Report
Pyrmont Community Centre 
Upgrade
79A John Street Pyrmont 

11



2

Location

Existing Heritage Buildings on John Street

Existing Entry and Foyer 

12



2020 Endorsed Scope 

3

1. Access Upgrade: installation of lift

2. Gym Upgrade: extension and upgrade of 

current weights area

3. New Community Rooms: 

• Convert the existing gym cardio room

• Convert existing OSHC Homework Space

4. Level one public toilets

Scope Report – Pyrmont Community Centre Upgrade

LIFT ACCESS

BUILDING ENTRY

AFTER 
SCHOOL

CARE

FOYER

NEW EXPANDED 
GYM

EXISTING 
GYM AREA 

COMM
ROOM

COMM
ROOM13



GROUND FLOOR PLAN

Additional area to be excavated

Remaining 90’s Building

Proposed Upgrade

Original 1884 School Building

Additional Scope Items

Scope Report – Pyrmont Community Centre Upgrade4

a) New 60m2 dedicated community room

b) New ground floor office and public toilets 

c) New required fire services  

d) Refurbish all community rooms

e) DAP Recommendation 1: Reduce the 

dominance of the unsympathetic 90’s addition.

f) DAP Recommendation 2: Consider additional 

excavation to better rationalise floor levels. 

E

F

14



Recommended Scope 

5

1. Access Upgrade and New foyer

2. Gym Upgrade

3. New Community Rooms

4. Level one public toilets

5. Upgrade Out of School Hours Facility

6. Refurbishing all other community 

centre areas

7. Full fire services upgrade

Scope Report – Pyrmont Community Centre Upgrade

15



Recommended Scope 

6 Scope Report – Pyrmont Community Centre Upgrade

NEW 
COMMUNITY

ROOM

NEW EXPANDED 
GYM

NEW FOYER

LIFT

NEW 
COMMUNITY

ROOM

REFURBISH 
OUT OF SCHOOL 

HOURS CARE

REFURBISH 
ALL COMMUNITY 
CENTRE AREAS

REFURBISH 
ALL COMMUNITY 
CENTRE AREAS

LEVEL 1 
TOILETS

NEW
GROUND 
FLOOR

TOILETS

NEW 
OFFICE

GROUND FLOOR PLAN LEVEL 1 FLOOR PLAN

FIRE SERVICES FIRE 
SERVICES

NEW FOYERLIFT

UPGRADE EQUIPMENT
OUT OF SCHOOL 

HOURS CARE

16



Program

7

Scope Approved Mid 2021

Lodge Development Application Late 2021

Commence Construction Mid-Late 2022

Scope Report – Pyrmont Community Centre Upgrade

17



Attachment B 

Resolution of Council – 29 June 2020 

 

 

 

 

18



29 June 2020

Item 8.6

Project Scope - Pyrmont Community Centre Upgrade

Moved by the Chair (the Lord Mayor), seconded by Councillor Scott - 

It is resolved that:

(A) authority be delegated to the Chief Executive Officer to endorse the project scope for 
the upgrade of the Pyrmont Community Centre as described in the subject report; and

(B) Council note the financial implications detailed in Confidential Attachment B to the 
subject report.

Carried unanimously.

X026784

19



Document is Restricted

20

CONFIDENTIAL 
By virtue of the Local Government Act 1993 Section 10A Paragraph 2


	Agenda
	1 Disclosures of Interest
	2 Revised Project Scope - Pyrmont Community Centre Upgrade
	Attachment A - Project Scope
	Scope Report�Pyrmont Community Centre Upgrade
	Location
	2020 Endorsed Scope 
	Additional Scope Items
	Recommended Scope 
	Recommended Scope 
	Program

	Attachment B - Resolution of Council - 29 June 2020
	Attachment C - Financial Implications (Confidential)


